Approved: March 31, 2006

Date

MINUTES OF THE HOUSE TAXATION COMMITTEE

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Kenny Wilk at 9:00 A.M. on March 20, 2006 in Room 519-S of the Capitol.

All members were present.

Committee staff present:

Chris Courtwright, Legislative Research Department Martha Dorsey, Legislative Research Department Gordon Self, Revisor of Statutes Rose Marie Glatt, Committee Secretary

Conferees appearing before the committee: Allie Devine, KS Livestock Association

Others attending: See attached list.

The Chairman called attention to HB 2685.

HB 2685 - Income tax credit for taxpayer contributions to educational institutions to be used in programs designed to train and educate licensed medical professionals.

Representative George reviewed the details of the bill, which had a hearing on February 14, 2006. The bill deals with the shortage of teaching instructors in the medical field. The fiscal note is \$10 million. Representative George suggested that this program would be a good pilot program.

The Chairman said that he wanted to pull the bill back to allow for further discussion.

SB 365 - Would create a stand-alone Kansas estate tax no longer tied directly to federal law.

The Chairman reviewed the status of the bill and said they would continue to work the bill until members of the Committee were comfortable to take action. When they left yesterday they had passed Representative Goico's amendment.

Chris Courtwright reviewed the fiscal note on the Senate bill. The fiscal note related to Representative Goico's amendment boosted the tax-exempt thresholds to the levels that exist in the federal laws over the next three years. Steve Stott quoted the fiscal impact for the following three years: FY 2008 - \$7 million; FY 2009 - \$4 million; and FY 2010 - \$2 million. Chris Courtwright gave the dollar amounts that would apply under the Goico amendment, using the Senate supplemental note for reference: FY 2008 - \$36 million; FY 2009 - \$28 million; FY 2010 - \$13 million.

Representative Carlin made a motion to adopt a conceptional amendment that would make the estate tax permanent beginning in FY 2008 and would apply to estates greater than \$3.5 million in taxable estate value. It would generate \$15 million per year. Representative Dillmore seconded the motion.

Discussion followed citing the pros and cons of the estate tax.

Representative Carlin closed her motion. The motion failed 8-13.

Gordon Self distributed copies of the current SB 365, that reflects the changes made by Representative Goico's amendment (Attachment 1).

The Chairman said the discussion on SB 365 would continue tomorrow.

SB 444 - Net operating loss carry back or carry forward for income tax purposes.

Chris Courtwright explained that the bill would relax a limitation on income tax refunds resulting

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE House Taxation Committee at 9:00 A.M. on March 20, 2006 in Room 519-S of the Capitol.

from farm net-operating-loss carry backs. Under current law, refund amounts in excess of \$1,500 may be carried back or carried forward and applied against other tax years. The bill would authorize the excess refund amounts to be carried forward to any year or years after the losses, and be claimed as refundable income tax credits in amounts that could not exceed \$1,500 per year. A fiscal note of \$0.25 million is projected.

A Committee question on how this bill would affect bankruptcy issues was raised. Several scenarios were given to determine if people who have filed for bankruptcy could continue to claim a tax credit for previous losses. After lengthy discussion, at the Chairman's request, Allie Devine advised that she was checking with counsel and would advise the Committee soon.

Allie Devine responded to the Committee question and said:

"If the entity that files bankruptcy is a business, the tax consequences for the business stay with the business. If it continues, and reorganizes, the estate that is filed and becomes an entity within the bankruptcy court would have the same consequences as if it had never filed bankruptcy. If it goes out of business, the bankruptcy estate files its final tax return, and that is the end of the business, so the entity no longer exists, so it could not reap benefits of the tax codes."

"If the entity is an individual at the time of the bankruptcy filing, the bankruptcy estate is created and is separate from that person. The bankruptcy, once it is created, takes on all the attributes of the tax code, or the tax effects, as if it were a separate entity from the individual. The bankruptcy trustee then does the tax code filing, as would be done in any other bankruptcy. At the time that the bankruptcy trustee makes the final tax preparation for the estate, any remaining tax consequences revert back to the individual. For the period of time that it is in the bankruptcy estate, it is under the auspices of that separate estate." She gave several examples.

Representative Owens made a motion that they recommend **SB 444** favorable for passage. Representative Thull seconded the motion. The motion carried.

HCR 5027 - A constitutional amendment to limit appraised valuation increases of real property used for residential purposes to consumer price index for property tax purposes which would go on the ballot in November 2006.

Chris Courtwright explained how this is an exception to the fair market value in some cases, but not in all cases. This would have fiscal implications with respect to the state's fixed 21.5 mills.

Issues voiced by Committee members:

- This is an exception to the uniform and equal fair market value methodology currently employed.
- An option should be a possible amendment that would make this law apply to all real and personal property uniformly, in order to avoid tax shifts, etc.
- Problem needs to be studied to assure that retired people or military families can afford to stay in their homes, and not forced to move due to escalating taxes each year.
- Concern over the use of Consumer Price Index. There is a lack of relationship between the current CPI and what is happening to the housing market in the country.
- Discussion followed regarding the merits of <u>HB 2816</u> to achieve what many perceive the goal to be Providing property tax deferrals on certain property owned by persons 65 years of age or older.
- Flaws in the current process when it comes to application in diverse and widely ranged valued neighborhoods and communities.
- Homes can be the major asset for many people and capping the valuation of the home could have negative effects for the elderly.
- Challenge is to revisit the appraisal methodology, to ascertain how to address the issues of wide fluctuations and evaluations, so that the value is more appropriate to the actual market value of the house.

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE House Taxation Committee at 9:00 A.M. on March 20, 2006 in Room 519-S of the Capitol.

The Chairman said that this was a weighty issue, and the Committee's concerns would be compiled into a request to LCC for a significant review of **HCR 5027**.

The Chairman adjourned the Committee at 10:30 A.M. The next meeting is March 21, 2006.